
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
November 5, 2015 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Richard Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
   
Board Members Absent: None 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Stephen Mack, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, District Legal Counsel 
      John Wanger, Coastland Civil Engineering 
      John Herreld 
      Benji Nelson 
      Hans Bruhner 
      Lori Bruhner 
      Adam Rivera 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Gaylord Schaap at 6:32 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 
p.m.) 


 
(None.)  
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.) 
 
Director Schaap reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Holmer moved to approve 
the Consent Calendar as submitted. Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion carried 4-0, except that 
Director Robb-Wilder abstained as to Item III-A (Minutes) because she was absent from the 
October 1 Board Meeting.  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the October 1, 2015 Regular Board Meeting. 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 


 1







C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: 
 
 (1) Letter dated November 2, 2015 from Rita O'Flynn (17448 River Lane) 
 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.) 
None. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:33 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:33 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re District Property at 17448 River Lane.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Directors Robb-Wilder and Holmer provided additional 
overview.  Board discussion/questions ensued.  Public comment was made by John 
Herreld.  Public comment was made by Benji Nelson.  Public comment was made by an 
unidentified person.  Public comment was made by Hans and Lori Bruhner.  Public 
comment was made by Adam Rivera.  Board discussion ensued.  Further comment was 
made by Benji Nelson.  The GM provided additional overview.  Board discussion ensued.  
Direction was given to staff not to respond to Ms. O'Flynn's letter other than her request 
for Public Records.  


 
V-B. (7:23 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re FY 2017 Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  The 


GM introduced this item.  John Wanger, Coastland Civil Engineering, made a 
presentation to the Board.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 


 
V-C.  (7:43 p.m.)  Discussi8on/Action re Board vacancy.  The GM provided an overview of 


this item.  Comments were made by Legal Counsel Robin Donoghue.  Discussion 
ensued.  A Special Meeting was scheduled for Monday, November 23, at 6:30 p.m. to 
review applications and appoint a director.     


 
V-D. (7:55 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re FY 2015-16 1st Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted 


Operations and Capital Expenditures and County Balances.  The GM provided and 
overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 


 
V-E. (8:03 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 15-21 Commending 


Victoria Wikle for Her Service on the District Board.  President Schaap read 
Resolution 15-21 into the record.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve Resolution 15-
21, Commending Victoria Wikle for Her Service on the District Board.  Director Lipinski 
seconded.  Discussion ensued.  Motion carried 4-0. 


 
 


VII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:10 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory Testing. 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Guerneville Rainfall 
5. 2016 CIP 
6. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8 Water Audit Workshop 
9. Correlation Equipment Demonstration 
10 Regional Flood Preparation Meeting 
11. Gantt Chart 
12. Ridgecrest tank liner needed 


 2







 3


 
Board questions ensued. 
 
 


VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(7:13 p.m.) 


 
Director Schaap announced that the County is looking for a homeless shelter site out here. 
 
Director Holmer announced ongoing meetings on the Russian River TMDL process.  October 8 is 
the cut-off date for comments.  
 
Director Lipinski announced more interest in a Lower Russian River Advisory Council. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (7:16 p.m.) 
 
1. CIP Review 
2. Riverlane property 
3. Election of Officers 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 8:36 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:33 p.m.)*

		VII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:10 p.m.)

		VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(7:13 p.m.)



		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (7:16 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors SPECIAL Meeting  
November 23, 2015 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Richard Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
   
Board Members Absent: None 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Stephen Mack, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, District Legal Counsel 
      Pip Marquez de la Plata 
      Brian Grant 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Gaylord Schaap at 6:32 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 
p.m.) 


 
(None.)  
 


III. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:34 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Interviews and appointment for a replacement for 
resigned Board Member Victoria Wikle.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Comments were made by Legal Counsel Robin Donoghue.  The Board made a finding that there 
were three (3) applicants for the open Board position:  Jim Quigley, Brian Grant, and Pip 
Marquez de la Plata.  The GM provided information regarding Jim Quigley's application.  Board 
discussion ensued.  The candidates who were present (Brian Grant and Pip Marquez de la Plata) 
introduced themselves to the Board.  The Board asked questions of each candidate.  The 
candidates asked questions of the Board.  Further Board discussion ensued.   
 
Director Robb-Wilder moved to appoint Pip Marquez de la Plata to fill the Board position vacated 
by Victoria Wikle.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  Brief discussion ensued.   


 1







 2


 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 p.m.)

		III. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.)*

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
December 3, 2015, Regular Meeting  


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the November 5, 2015 Regular Board Meeting and 


the Minutes of the November 23, 2015 Special Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 







attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
D. Approval of Res 15-22, Authorizing and Revoking Signers to the West America 


Bank Accounts 
 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re District Property at 17448 River Lane (Est. time 20 min.)  
 
B. Discussion/Action re FY Review of the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) (Est 


time 15 min.)  
 
C. Discussion/Action re Discussion/Action re Election of Officers (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		VIII.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
 Meeting Date: December 3, 2015 
 
 Subject:  West America Account – Authorizing and Revoking Signers 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Approve Resolution 15-22, Authorizing and Revoking Signers to the West America Bank Accounts. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


None.  
 


 
DISCUSSION: 


This Resolution is necessary in order to replace Victoria Wikle with Francisco ("Pip") Javier Marquez 
de la Plata as one of the Directors authorized to sign checks on the West America account.  The 
original Resolution will be on the back of the Signature Card to be prepared by WestAmerica Bank and 
available by December 3.  All directors will need to sign the new Signature Card. 
 





		None. 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : December 3, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING DISTRICT PROPERTY AT 17448 
RIVER LANE, GUERNEVILLE  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a followup presentation by the General 
Manager on recent issues at the District property at 17448 River Lane, Guerneville and 
provide direction to staff.     


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
17448 River Lane, Guerneville, is a property of approximately one acre in Vacation 
Beach, Guerneville.  It was formerly the site of a District well which has been long 
abandoned.  The Board discussed issues regarding this property at the September 
meeting, heard from a neighboring property's owners, Mr.  and Mrs. O'Flynn, and a 
subcommittee comprising Rich Holmer and Sukey Robb-Wilder was appointed to assist 
the General Manager to investigate this item more fully.   
 
Progress: 
 
Not much has happened in the past month.  I have made a call to the Agriculture and 
Open Space Commission regarding a conservation easement but have not received the 
promised call back - time to try again. 
 
Sukey and Rich volunteered to speak with the neighborhood group but that hasn't 
happened.   
 
Mr. James Vincent has reaffirmed his interest via email but we have not directly 
communicated.   
 
I provided the requested public records to Ms. O'Flynn on November 20, 2015.   





		Meeting Date : December 3, 2015 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 3, 2015  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE REVIEW OF THE 2016-2023 CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM    


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation on the review of the 2016-2023 Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) and provide direction to staff. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
This is the start of the annual review of the District's approved Capital Improvement Program 
(CIP) which we start every December.  If there are no changes or questions, we move on with 
whatever has been planned for the coming year; if questions arise staff work on getting and 
we come back in January for more discussion.  This is one of those years when the Board may 
have questions and explore alternatives largely because we are running out of money.  We 
had been fortunate to be able to build up and maintain substantial reserves because of the 
funding from the Redevelopment Agency which is no longer an option.  The past two years we 
have been fully funding our projects and we are nearing the end of what we can self fund on 
an annual basis.    
 
At the August 2015 Board Meeting the Board approved a revised 2016-2023 CIP which was 
the result of a comprehensive staff and Board review of the District's capital projects, 
augmented by the work of the ad hoc CIP Review Subcommittee.  Items that the 
Subcommittee addressed included the selection criteria listed below:   
 


 Improved water quality  
 Water losses  
 Potential Liability    


 Age of Pipe 
 Pipe Material 
 Terrain  
 Difficulty of Repair/Maintenance  


 Storage and pressure zone requirements  
 Costs per service  


 
Table 1 shows the approved 2016-2023 CIP.  A major change in the CIP was the inclusion of 
the River Road project and position as the project next for construction in FY 2017.  This 
project is currently under design by Coastland Engineering.  Two leaks associated with the 
water main along River Road near Rio Nido, the pipe material of that main - cast iron - the 
condition of the pipe material when it was excavated for repair, and the fact that it's the only 
supply line into Rio Nido have moved this project to the top of the list.   







2016-2023 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 2  
December 3, 2015 
 


 


 
A major issue with the approved CIP is the possible cost of the 2017 project.  In Table 1 the 
project is listed as $985,000 but we are almost certain it is much more expensive than that - 
the main length is longer than what is stated in the CIP and the included side streets only add 
length and cost.  We are thinking it will be closer to $ 2 million.  We will have a much better of 
the cost in January when design is nearing the 50% mark.  As Table 2 shows we cannot afford 
this size of a project to be done next year - we will run through all our reserves including 
Policy Reserves.  Possible alternatives include: 
 


 Split the project into two years but do we want to chance the possibility that starting 
the project and then waiting for completion will present a risk of failure to the delayed 
half. 


 Do the 2018 project first building up reserves (or just skip a year totally).  That will also 
give us some time to look for grant funds. 


 Get a loan - we might be able get a USDA loan but that incurs more debt, something 
we've been trying to get away from.  However, with low reserves we might be able to 
get some debt forgiveness.  Also possible is a State Prop 1 grant or loan associated with 
that or other State funding.   
 


  
 
We can discuss this and other aspects of the CIP at the Board Meeting.  







2016-2023 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 3  
December 3, 2015 
 


 


 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District  2016-2023 CIP 
Projects by Year     


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost Cost/Service  Comments 
         


2016        


  


Canyon 1 (Rio Nido)  Replace approximately 
3,900 ft of existing mainline and 75 services 
along Canyon 1 Rd., Memory Ln., Memory Park 
Rd. $890,000 $11,867  


Contract Awarded 
for $915,433, 
Design, CMI 
$175,000 


  2016 Total $890,000     


2017        


  


Replace approximately 3,500 ft of existing main 
and 70 services on Old River Rd at Morningside 
east to the eastern section of Foothill Drive.  
Include Orchard Rd and Foothill Drive and River 
Rd on river side of the road. Feeds Rio Nido. $985,000 $14,071  


Cost is rough 
estimate, will be 
refined during 
design 


  2017 Total $985,000     


2018        


  


Monte Rio Treatment Plant Green Sand Filter 
Replacement. Serves Monte Rio system (1100 
services) $200,000 NA   


  2018 Total $200,000     


2019        


  


Park Ave. (GV) replace approximately 2900 lf of 
main line on Park Ave. and McLane, 37 
services.  Loop two deadend lines. 
Replace/repair Park Ave. Tank $788,000 $21,297    


  
Cherry St. (GV) replace approximately 440 lf of 
main line, 13 services.   $126,000 $9,692    


  2019 Total $914,000 $18,280    


2020        


  


Wright Drive main pressure zone. – (GV) 
Replace approximately 1,120 ft of existing 
mainline and 18 associated services along 
Wright Dr. and Wright Ln.   $275,000 $15,278    


  


Woodland Drive – mainline replacement. (GV) 
Replace approximately 1,900 ft of existing 
mainline and 27 associated services along 
Woodland Dr in the main pressure zone.   $400,000 $14,815    


  2020 Total $675,000 $15,000    


2021 Skip Capital Project      


2022        







2016-2023 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 4  
December 3, 2015 
 


 


  


Schoeneman pressure zone- main line 
replacement. (GV)    Replace approximately 
3,000 ft of existing mainline and 47 associated 
services along Highland Way, Sunset Ave, 
Woodland Dr, Laurel Way and Morningside 
Drive.  (requires completion of Schoeneman 
Tank and includes Shoeneman Booster) $814,300 $17,326    


  


Schoeneman Tank– Replace the existing 
10,000 gallon tank with a 30,000 gallon storage 
tank.  2005 cost estimate $127,000     


  2021 Total $941,300 $20,028    


2023        


  


Wright Drive upper pressure zone. – (GV)    
Replace approximately 3,280 ft of existing 
mainline and 47 associated services along 
Wright Dr, Glenda Dr, Natoma Dr. (requires 
completion of Natoma Tank and includes 
Edgehill Booster) $870,000 $18,511    


  


Natoma Tank – Replace the existing 10,000 
gallon storage tank with a 30,000 storage tank.   
2005 cost estimate 


$190,000 


    


  2023 Total $1,060,000 $22,553    


  Total Cost of 2017-2023 Projects $4,675,300     


         


  Other Projects      


  
Highway 116 (MR) Replace approximately 850 ft 
of main line.  $280,000     


  
Main St   (MR) Replace approximately 800 ft of 
mainline along Main St. $180,000     


  


Upper Summit Tank - Construct a storage tank 
with a nominal capacity of approximately 
120,000 gallons at the District–owned site on 
McLane Avenue. Project to include relocation/ 
construction of the existing hydro-pneumatic 
pump station. $490,000   


wait for Dubrava 
Development? 


  
Total Approximate Cost of Future, 
Unapproved Projects $950,000     


 
 
 







2016-2023 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 5  
December 3, 2015 
 


 


3% Sales Flat


FY15 Actual FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24


1 REVENUE
2 OPERATING REVENUE Reduced WS Flat 10% Increase Flat….
3 Water Bill Revenue


4 Capital Debt Reduction Charge 254,854 262,500 270,375 278,486 286,841 295,446 304,309 313,438 322,842 234,300          


5 Total Water Sales 1,951,973 1,953,372 2,011,973 2,126,910 2,190,717 2,256,439 2,324,132 2,393,856 2,465,671 2,539,641


6 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,223,209 2,215,871 2,282,348 2,405,396 2,477,558 2,551,884 2,628,441 2,707,294 2,788,513 2,773,941


7 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 128,965 110,982 108,911 110,788 112,702 114,655 116,647 118,679 120,751 122,865


8 Total Income 2,352,174 2,326,853 2,391,258 2,516,183 2,590,260 2,666,539 2,745,088 2,825,973 2,909,264 2,896,806


9 EXPENSES
10 769,269 845,041 841,542 858,370 915,540 933,850 952,530 971,580 991,010 1,010,830


11 287,128 271,662 260,021 269,208 283,916 294,024 304,572 315,580 327,071 339,067


12 SALARY & BENEFITS 1,078,736 1,116,703 1,101,563 1,127,578 1,199,456 1,227,874 1,257,102 1,287,160 1,318,081 1,349,897


13 SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase = 1%


14 SERVICES & SUPPLIES 571,105 556,000 561,560 567,176 572,847 578,576 584,362 590,205 596,107 602,068


15 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,649,841 1,672,703 1,663,123 1,694,754 1,772,303 1,806,450 1,841,463 1,877,365 1,914,188 1,951,965


16 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $702,333 $654,150 $728,136 $821,429 $817,957 $860,090 $903,624 $948,607 $995,075 $944,841


17 FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 50,888 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000


18 Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 253,947 262,500 270,375       278,486      286,841        295,446        304,309          313,438          322,842         234,300          


19 Tfers to CIRF 260,000 310,000         360,000       470,000      470,000        460,000        510,000          510,000          560,000         550,000          


20 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 553,947 612,500 670,375 788,486 796,841 795,446 854,309 863,438 922,842 824,300


21 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 119,836 1,651 46,761 -7,057 10,116 24,644 38,315 45,169 61,234 80,541


22 Capital Budget
23 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
24 Net Operating Revenues** 379,836 311,651 406,761 462,943 480,116 484,644 548,315 555,169 621,234 630,541


25 Assessments 827,995 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000


26 Capital Debt Reduction Charge*** 253,947         262,500         270,375       278,486      286,841        295,446        304,309          313,438          322,842         234,300          


27 Capital Interest 11,995 30,000           10,000         10,000        10,000          10,000          10,000            10,000            10,000           10,000            


28 Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 708,000 800,000         620,000       530,000        540,000          -                 170,000         250,000          


29 TOTAL REVENUE 2,181,773 2,181,150 2,084,136 1,528,429 2,083,957 1,567,090 2,179,624 1,655,607 1,901,075 1,901,841


30
31 Total Debt Payments 970,693         1,038,300      1,038,300    1,038,300   1,038,300     1,038,300     1,038,300       1,017,300       847,300         847,300          


32 CIP 2015 CIP 2016 CIP 2017 CIP 2018 CIP 2019 CIP 2020 CIP 2021 CIP 2022 CIP 2023 CIP 2024


33 Annual CIP 1,038,062 1,097,346 2,000,000 200,000      1,096,800 810,000        no project 1,129,560       no project 1,000,000


34 In-House Construction Projects, etc. 52,274 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000


35 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,061,030 2,175,646 3,078,300 1,278,300 2,175,100 1,888,300 1,078,300 2,186,860 887,300 1,887,300


36 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 120,743 5,504 -994,164 250,129 -91,143 -321,210 1,101,324 -531,253 1,013,775 14,541


37 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


38 Ending Funds ab District Policy 1,774,258      979,762         (634,402)      (384,273)     (1,005,416)    (1,326,626)    (765,302)         (1,296,555)      (452,779)        (688,238)         


39 NET CAPITAL FUNDING**** 503,080         342,850         425,836       490,129      515,657        528,790        601,324          638,307          883,775         804,541          


*  Starting values based on projected FY13 EOY


** =Transfer to CIRF plus net operating surplus


*** =Transfers from CDRC


**** =Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + CDRC + Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments


EXPENSES


Total Benefits


Water Rate, CDRC 
Increase =


Table 2.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 
SUMMARY - 3% Increase, Approved CIP with est 
costs 


Total Salary







2016-2023 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 6  
December 3, 2015 
 


 


3% Sales Flat


FY15 Actual FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24


1 REVENUE
2 OPERATING REVENUE Reduced WS Flat 10% Increase Flat….
3 Water Bill Revenue


4 Capital Debt Reduction Charge 254,854 262,500 270,375 278,486 286,841 295,446 304,309 313,438 322,842 234,300          


5 Total Water Sales 1,951,973 1,953,372 2,011,973 2,126,910 2,190,717 2,256,439 2,324,132 2,393,856 2,465,671 2,539,641


6 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,223,209 2,215,871 2,282,348 2,405,396 2,477,558 2,551,884 2,628,441 2,707,294 2,788,513 2,773,941


7 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 128,965 110,982 108,911 110,788 112,702 114,655 116,647 118,679 120,751 122,865


8 Total Income 2,352,174 2,326,853 2,391,258 2,516,183 2,590,260 2,666,539 2,745,088 2,825,973 2,909,264 2,896,806


9 EXPENSES
10 769,269 845,041 841,542 858,370 915,540 933,850 952,530 971,580 991,010 1,010,830


11 287,128 271,662 260,021 269,208 283,916 294,024 304,572 315,580 327,071 339,067


12 SALARY & BENEFITS 1,078,736 1,116,703 1,101,563 1,127,578 1,199,456 1,227,874 1,257,102 1,287,160 1,318,081 1,349,897
13 SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase = 1%


14 SERVICES & SUPPLIES 571,105 556,000 561,560 567,176 572,847 578,576 584,362 590,205 596,107 602,068


15 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,649,841 1,672,703 1,663,123 1,694,754 1,772,303 1,806,450 1,841,463 1,877,365 1,914,188 1,951,965


16 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $702,333 $654,150 $728,136 $821,429 $817,957 $860,090 $903,624 $948,607 $995,075 $944,841


17 FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 50,888 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000


18 Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 253,947 262,500 270,375       278,486      286,841        295,446        304,309          313,438          322,842         234,300          


19 Tfers to CIRF 260,000 310,000         360,000       470,000      470,000        460,000        510,000          510,000          560,000         550,000          


20 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 553,947 612,500 670,375 788,486 796,841 795,446 854,309 863,438 922,842 824,300


21 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 119,836 1,651 46,761 -7,057 10,116 24,644 38,315 45,169 61,234 80,541


22 Capital Budget
23 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
24 Net Operating Revenues** 379,836 311,651 406,761 462,943 480,116 484,644 548,315 555,169 621,234 630,541


25 Assessments 827,995 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000


26 Capital Debt Reduction Charge*** 253,947         262,500         270,375       278,486      286,841        295,446        304,309          313,438          322,842         234,300          


27 Capital Interest 11,995 30,000           10,000         10,000        10,000          10,000          10,000            10,000            10,000           10,000            


28 Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 708,000 800,000         620,000       530,000        540,000          -                 170,000         250,000          


29 TOTAL REVENUE 2,181,773 2,181,150 2,084,136 1,528,429 2,083,957 1,567,090 2,179,624 1,655,607 1,901,075 1,901,841


30
31 Total Debt Payments 970,693         1,038,300      1,038,300    1,038,300   1,038,300     1,038,300     1,038,300       1,017,300       847,300         847,300          


32 CIP 2015 CIP 2016 CIP 2017 CIP 2018 CIP 2019 CIP 2020 CIP 2021 CIP 2022 CIP 2023 CIP 2024


33 Annual CIP 1,038,062 1,097,346 1,000,000 200,000      1,000,000 no project 1,096,800 810,000          no project 1,129,560       


34 In-House Construction Projects, etc. 52,274 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000


35 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,061,030 2,175,646 2,078,300 1,278,300 2,078,300 1,078,300 2,175,100 1,867,300 887,300 2,016,860


36 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 120,743 5,504 5,836 250,129 5,657 488,790 4,524 -211,693 1,013,775 -115,019


37 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


38 Ending Funds ab District Policy 1,774,258      979,762         365,598       615,727      91,384          580,174        44,698            (166,995)         676,781         311,762          


39 NET CAPITAL FUNDING**** 503,080         342,850         425,836       490,129      515,657        528,790        601,324          638,307          883,775         804,541          


*  Starting values based on projected FY13 EOY


** =Transfer to CIRF plus net operating surplus


*** =Transfers from CDRC


**** =Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + CDRC + Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments


EXPENSES


Total Benefits


Water Rate, CDRC 
Increase =


Table 3.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 
SUMMARY - 3% Increase, Approved CIP with est 
costs, split 2017 


Total Salary


 







2016-2023 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 7  
December 3, 2015 
 


 


3% Sales Flat


FY15 Actual FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24


1 REVENUE
2 OPERATING REVENUE Reduced WS Flat 10% Increase Flat….
3 Water Bill Revenue


4 Capital Debt Reduction Charge 254,854 262,500 270,375 278,486 286,841 295,446 304,309 313,438 322,842 234,300          


5 Total Water Sales 1,951,973 1,953,372 2,011,973 2,126,910 2,190,717 2,256,439 2,324,132 2,393,856 2,465,671 2,539,641


6 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,223,209 2,215,871 2,282,348 2,405,396 2,477,558 2,551,884 2,628,441 2,707,294 2,788,513 2,773,941


7 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 128,965 110,982 108,911 110,788 112,702 114,655 116,647 118,679 120,751 122,865


8 Total Income 2,352,174 2,326,853 2,391,258 2,516,183 2,590,260 2,666,539 2,745,088 2,825,973 2,909,264 2,896,806


9 EXPENSES
10 769,269 845,041 841,542 858,370 915,540 933,850 952,530 971,580 991,010 1,010,830


11 287,128 271,662 260,021 269,208 283,916 294,024 304,572 315,580 327,071 339,067


12 SALARY & BENEFITS 1,078,736 1,116,703 1,101,563 1,127,578 1,199,456 1,227,874 1,257,102 1,287,160 1,318,081 1,349,897
13 SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase = 1%


14 SERVICES & SUPPLIES 571,105 556,000 561,560 567,176 572,847 578,576 584,362 590,205 596,107 602,068


15 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,649,841 1,672,703 1,663,123 1,694,754 1,772,303 1,806,450 1,841,463 1,877,365 1,914,188 1,951,965


16 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $702,333 $654,150 $728,136 $821,429 $817,957 $860,090 $903,624 $948,607 $995,075 $944,841


17 FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 50,888 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000 11,000 40,000


18 Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 253,947 262,500 270,375       278,486      286,841        295,446        304,309          313,438          322,842         234,300          


19 Tfers to CIRF 260,000 310,000         360,000       470,000      470,000        460,000        510,000          510,000          560,000         550,000          


20 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 553,947 612,500 670,375 788,486 796,841 795,446 854,309 863,438 922,842 824,300


21 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 119,836 1,651 46,761 -7,057 10,116 24,644 38,315 45,169 61,234 80,541


22 Capital Budget
23 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
24 Net Operating Revenues** 379,836 311,651 406,761 462,943 480,116 484,644 548,315 555,169 621,234 630,541


25 Assessments 827,995 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000 777,000


26 Capital Debt Reduction Charge*** 253,947         262,500         270,375       278,486      286,841        295,446        304,309          313,438          322,842         234,300          


27 Capital Interest 11,995 30,000           10,000         10,000        10,000          10,000          10,000            10,000            10,000           10,000            


28 Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 708,000 800,000         1,550,000   610,000        220,000          370,000          


29 TOTAL REVENUE 2,181,773 2,181,150 1,464,136 3,078,429 1,553,957 2,177,090 1,639,624 1,875,607 1,731,075 2,021,841


30
31 Total Debt Payments 970,693         1,038,300      1,038,300    1,038,300   1,038,300     1,038,300     1,038,300       1,017,300       847,300         847,300          


32 CIP 2015 CIP 2016 CIP 2017 CIP 2018 CIP 2019 CIP 2020 CIP 2021 CIP 2022 CIP 2023 CIP 2024


33 Annual CIP 1,038,062 1,097,346 200,000 2,000,000   no project 1,096,800     no project 810,000          no project 1,129,560       


34 In-House Construction Projects, etc. 52,274 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000


35 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,061,030 2,175,646 1,278,300 3,078,300 1,078,300 2,175,100 1,078,300 1,867,300 887,300 2,016,860


36 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 120,743 5,504 185,836 129 475,657 1,990 561,324 8,307 843,775 4,981


37 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


38 Ending Funds ab District Policy 1,774,258      979,762         1,165,598    (384,273)     91,384          (516,626)       44,698            (166,995)         676,781         311,762          


39 NET CAPITAL FUNDING**** 503,080         342,850         425,836       490,129      515,657        528,790        601,324          638,307          883,775         804,541          


*  Starting values based on projected FY13 EOY


** =Transfer to CIRF plus net operating surplus


*** =Transfers from CDRC


**** =Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + CDRC + Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments


EXPENSES


Total Benefits


Water Rate, CDRC 
Increase =


Table 4.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 
SUMMARY - 3% Increase, Approved CIP with est 
costs, move 2017


Total Salary


 





		Meeting Date: December 3, 2015 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 3, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  2016 ORGANIZATION MEETING / BOARD ELECTIONS   


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Elect Board officers for the coming year.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
District policy requires the election of officers for the coming year at the 
December Board meeting unless there is a change in the Board due to the 
November election.  District policy states: "5000.50 Annual Organizational 
Meeting: The Board of Directors shall hold an annual organizational meeting 
at its regular meeting in December, except in years when new Directors are 
elected to the Board at the November regular election and seated after the 
regular December meeting.  In those years, the annual organization meeting 
will be held at the regular January meeting.  At this annual meeting the 
Board will select and appoint offers, as described in sections 4050.11 through 
4050.13, from among its members to serve during the coming calendar 
year."  Sections 4005.11 through 4050.13 describe the positions of President, 
Vice President, and Financial Coordinator.   
 
This year there were new Directors seated after the December meeting, thus 
our elections occur at the December meeting.   
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: December 3, 2015 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 3, 2015  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in October were 20,001 units (46.1 AF, Monte 
Rio cyle) and production was 57.3 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and production 
were lower (44.7 AF and 58.2 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage dropped a bit to  
(22.1), and the same as last year in October.   The reduction from October 2013, the State 
Board standard, was 10.9%, above the State mandate of 16%., but we are still averaging 
approximately 26% for the summer (May-October).  GPCD for October was 62.9.  Figure 1 
shows sales, production and % difference since 2008 for the two systems.   


 
2. Leaks:  In October we had 11 total leaks and spent 54 man-hours on them.   Those are the 


same number of leaks and more man-hours compared to the prior month and more leaks 
(by one) and  fewer man-hours compared to October one year ago (10 leaks, 55.25 man-
hours).  Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately with a total breaks line as well.       


   
3.  Guerneville Rainfall:  We are in the second month of an El Nino rain year and nothing 
much has happened yet.  Figure 3 shows historical rainfall compared to this year's rain (which 
just started so not much there yet).  It's looking much closer to the worst year than the above 
average year but again it's early - El Nino rains typically don't happen until after the New Year.          
 


4. 2016/2017 CIP:   Piazza Construction is nearly done with the 2016 CIP on Canyon 1 Road 
in Rio Nido.  Paving should be completed by now (the rain may have interfered).  For the 
2017 CIP survey crews were out this week.          


   
5. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   No toilet rebates reported for September. 
 
 
6. In-House Construction Projects: In November two in-house construction projects were 


reported: replacement of 160 feet of main with 2 inch HDPE and two services on 
Morningside Drive (91 man-hours) and installation of bypass pump at Redwood Tank for new 
tank liner installation (33 man-hours).  


 
7. Gantt Chart:   The Gantt Chart for December has design for the 2017 CIPl, review of the 


CIP, and Russian River Water Rights.  The water rights item is long overdue and was put in 
the chart for a reminder; I don't expect any action on this until the drought is officially over - 
the measure of a water supply is how it handles drought so we need to get through this one 
before proper analysis can be done.          







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
December 3, 2015 
 


 
 
 


Figure 1.  Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 Month Moving Averages, SSWD Since March 2010 


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mar-15 Sep-15


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


P
er


ce
n


t 
L


o
st


Monte Rio Sales


Guerneville Sales


Gville Prdtn


MR Prdtn


GV % Lost


MR % Lost


`


 







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
December 3, 2015 
 


 Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Jan-
09


May-
09


Sep-
09


Jan-
10


May-
10


Sep-
10


Jan-
11


May-
11


Sep-
11


Jan-
12


May-
12


Sep-
12


Jan-
13


May-
13


Sep-
13


Jan-
14


May-
14


Sep-
14


Jan-
15


May-
15


Sep-
15


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


O
ct
ob


er


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ar
y


Fe
br


ua
ry


M
ar


ch
Apr


il
M


ay
Ju


ne Ju
ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
te


m
be


r


P
re


c
ip


it
a
ti


o
n


 (
in


)


GV 2009


Guerneville Avg


GV 2011


Dryest (1977)


2015


2016


07-15 Avg


-







 
Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 FY17+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2014-15 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2016 CIP Design


        2016 CIP Award of Contract


        2016 CIP Construction Starts


        2017 CIP Design


        2017 CIP Award of Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Jul-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest ??


Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal July-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: December 3, 2015 



